# CODEBOOK

Michigan State of the State 42 960 cases

Weight Variable: statewt

# CONTENTS

item		page
ID1	Case ID	1
R1	Data Record	1
cnty	County	2
regn	Region	4
newreq5	MSUE Region	4
listed	Sample Type	4
CC1	Past Financial	5
CC2	Future Financial	5 5
CC3	Current Financial	6
CC4	Inflation Rate	6
CC5	Unemployment Rate	7
CC6	Business Conditions	7
PO1	Bush Job Rating	8
PO2	Granholm Job Rating	8
SEC4	Terrorism Concern	9
ta1	Greater Present Need Non-profits	10
ta2	Organizations More Effective	11
ta3	Place Low Trust in Organizations	11
ta3a@a	Reasons: Low Trust - 1st Mention	12
ta3a@b	Reasons: Low Trust - 2nd Mention	13
ta4	Honest and Ethical	14
ta4a@a	Reasons: Honest/Ethical - 1st Mention	15
ta4a@b	Reasons: Honest/Ethical - 2nd Mention	16
ta5	Contribute Betterment Communities	17
ta6	Poor Job Helping Others	17
ta6a@a	Reasons: Poor Job 1st Mention	18
ta6a@b	Reasons: Poor Job 2nd Mention	19
v1	Donate 2005	20
N2	Donate: Religious Organizations	20
N3	Donate: Social Service Organizations	21
N4	Donate: The United Way	21
N5	Donate: Youth or Children's Organizations	22
N6	Donate: Education organizations	22
N8	Donate: Community Foundations	23
N8a	Donate: Animal Welfare	23
N8b	Donate: Health Organization	24
N9	Total Contributions	25
v4	Future Contributions	27
v5	Volunteer 2005	27
V3	Previous Volunteer	28
pastvol	Reasons: No Longer Volunteering	28
voltime	Amount Time Volunteer	29
V4a	Volunteer: Health Orgs	30
<del>-</del>	- ·	9.0

item		page
V5a	Volunteer: Educational Organization	30
V6a	Volunteer: Religious Organization	31
V7a	Volunteer: Human Service Organization	31
V8a	Volunteer: Environmental Organization	32
V10a	Volunteer: Arts Cultural Organizations	32
V12a	Volunteer: Political Organization	33
V13a	Volunteer: Youth Development Organization	33
v8	Future Volunteerism	34
volless	Reason Volunteering Less	34
ow1	Overweight Issue	35
CD1	Sex	35
CD2	Year Born	36
CD3	Education	38
CD5a	Ethnicity	38
CD4a@a	Race: White/Caucasian	39
CD4a@b	Race: African American or Black	39
CD4a@c	Race: Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander	40
CD4a@d	Race: Asian	40
CD4a@e	Race: American Indian or Alaska Native	41
CD4a@f	Race: Other	41
CD6	Religion	42
CD7@a	Political Affiliation	42
CD7@b	Republican	43
CD7@c	Democrat	43
CD7@d	Independent	44
partyid	Political Identification	44
P17@a	Ideology	45
P17@b	Conservative	45 46
P17@c	Liberal	
P17@d ideology	Middle Political Ideology	46 47
CD8	Marital Status	47
CD10	Adults	48
CD15	Employment Status	49
UN1	Union Member	49
UN2	Past Union	50
UN3	Union Family	50
inca	\$35,000 or More	51
incb	Less Than \$20,000	51
incc	Less than \$10,000	52
incd	\$60,000 or More	52
ince	\$40,000 or More	53
incf	\$50,000 or More	53
incg	\$70,000 or More	54
income	Income	54
CD26	Phone Lines	55

item		page
X1	Community	55
zipcode	Zip Code	56
RI@a	Re-Interview	56
contacts	Contacts	57
length	Interview Length	58
idate	Interview Date	59
iwer	Interviewer	61
males	Males	62
females	Female	62
races	Respondent Race	63
agecat	Rs age in categories	63
msueregn	Region code based on MSU Extension Groupings	64
rac3	Race 3 categories	64
AGE	Age of Respondent	65
imprace	Respondent Race with Imputation for missing data	67
newinc	Alternative Coding of Income	67
sample	Sample source of Respondent	68
msue2005	New MSUE Region code (2005)	68
agecat4	Rs age in 4 categories	68
msue2005r5	New MSUE Region code (5 categories)	69

ID1 Case ID

960 cases

Type: character Width: 5

Input location: 1/1-5

R1 Data Record

PCT N VALUE 100.0 960 1

960 cases

Type: character Width: 1

Input location: 1/6

cnty			County
	PCT 0.3 1.5 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.1 0.8 1.0 0.2 1.5 0.6 0.9 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.2 0.4 0.3 1.2 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1	N 3 15 2 4 5 1 8 10 2 4 6 9 4 1 1 3 4 7 2 4 3 12 7 5 2 1 3 4 4 4 1 2 2 3 5 4 1 1 8 2 4 0 5 2 9 1 2 1	VALUE 26003 26005 26007 26009 26011 26013 26015 26017 26019 26021 26025 26027 26029 26031 26033 26035 26037 26039 26041 26043 26045 26047 26049 26051 26055 26057 26059 26061 26063 26065 26067 26069 26073 26075 26077 26079 26081 26087 26099 26091 26093 26097

```
7.1
      68 26099
     2 26101
0.2
    4 26103
0.4
      2 26105
0.2
      3 26107
0.3
0.3
      3 26109
1.4 13 26111
0.3
      3 26113
    26 26115
2.7
      7 26117
2 26119
0.7
0.2
1.6
    16 26121
0.3 3 26123
12.4 119 26125
1.1
     11 26127
0.5
      4 26129
0.2
      2 26131
0.4
      4 26133
0.0
      0 26135
0.1
      1 26137
2.2
      21 26139
0.1
      1 26141
0.5
      5 26143
1.0
      9 26145
2.8
      26 26147
0.6
      6 26149
      5 26151
0.5
      2 26153
7 26155
0.2
0.8
      9 26157
1.0
    10 26159
1.0
    39 26161
4.0
14.6 140 26163
     5 26165
0.6
     960 cases
```

Type: character Width: 5

Input location: 1/14

```
regn
                         Region
       PCT N VALUE LABEL
3.4 32 1 upper pen
5.7 54 2 northern
14.2 136 3 west central
8.7 83 4 east central
13.8 132 5 southwest
45.6 437 6 southeast
8.7 83 7 Detroit
2 Not Applicable
                 960 cases
      Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 7
      Input location: 1/12
newreg5 MSUE Region
         PCT N VALUE
       100.0 960
                 ___
                 960 cases
       Type: character Width: 1
      Input location: 1/13
listed Sample Type
        PCT N VALUE LABEL 70.5 677 1 listed 29.5 283 2 unlisted
                960 cases
       Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 2
```

# CC1 Past Financial

I'd like to start by asking you a few questions about how things are going for Michigan residents in general.

Would you say that you (and your family living there) are better off or worse off financially than you were a year ago?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
33.6 322 1 BETTER OFF
24.0 230 2 ABOUT THE SAME
42.3 405 3 WORSE OFF
2 8 DO NOT KNOW
0 9 REFUSED
---
960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 3

Input location: 1/15

\_\_\_\_\_

# CC2 Future Financial

Now looking ahead, do you think that a year from now, you (and your family living there) will be better off financially or worse off financially?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
49.7 450 1 BETTER OFF
17.3 156 3 ABOUT THE SAME
33.0 299 5 WORSE OFF
53 8 DO NOT KNOW
1 9 REFUSED
---
960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/16

#### CC3 Current Financial

How would you rate your household's overall financial situation these days? Would you say it is excellent, good, just fair, not so good, or poor?

```
N VALUE LABEL
7.3
    69
         1 EXCELLENT
40.1 383
           2 GOOD
37.9 362
           3 JUST FAIR
           4 NOT SO GOOD
9.8 94
4.9
    46
          5 POOR
     3
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     3
           9 REFUSED
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/17

# CC4 Inflation Rate

During the next twelve months, do you think the rate of inflation in this country will go up, will go down, or will stay about the same as it was in the past 12 months?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
         1 GO UP
69.2 653
           3 GO DOWN
7.3
    69
           5 STAY ABOUT THE SAME
23.6 223
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     14
           9 REFUSED
     1
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/18

#### CC5 Unemployment Rate

Twelve months from now, do you expect the unemployment situation in this country to be better than, worse than, or about the same as it was in the last 12 months?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
13.3 125 1 BETTER THAN
40.7 384 3 WORSE THAN
46.1 434 5 ABOUT THE SAME
17 8 DO NOT KNOW
          0
                     9 REFUSED
         960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/19

### CC6 Business Conditions

Now turning to business conditions in your community, do you think that during the next twelve months your community will have good times financially, or bad times financially?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
32.6	302	1	GOOD TIMES
55.9	519	3	BAD TIMES
11.4	106	5	NEITHER
	31	8	DO NOT KNOW
	1	9	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/20

#### PO1 Bush Job Rating

The next few questions are about our elected officials and national security.

Overall, how would you rate the way George W. Bush is performing his job as President?

Would you say excellent, good, fair, or poor?

```
N VALUE LABEL
5.8 55 1 EXCELLENT
23.5 223
           2 GOOD
26.0 247
           3 FAIR
           4 POOR
44.7 424
          8 DO NOT KNOW
     4
      7
           9 REFUSED
    960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/21

# PO2 Granholm Job Rating

How would you rate the way Jennifer Granholm is performing her job as Michigan's governor?

Would you say excellent, good, fair, or poor?

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
          1 EXCELLENT
2 GOOD
     36
3.8
29.6 281
46.6 443
             3 FAIR
20.0 190
             4 POOR
             8 DO NOT KNOW
9 REFUSED
       3
     960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Max: 4 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0

Input location: 1/22

# SEC4 Terrorism Concern

All in all, how concerned are you that the United States might suffer  $% \left( 1\right) =\left( 1\right) +\left( 1\right) =\left( 1\right) +\left( 1\right) +\left( 1\right) =\left( 1\right) +\left( 1$ another terrorist attack in the next 3 months?

Would you say you are very concerned, somewhat concerned, not very concerned, or not concerned at all?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
16.3	155	1	VERY CONCERNED
43.1	411	2	SOMEWHAT CONCERNED
32.3	308	3	NOT VERY CONCERNED
8.3	80	4	NOT CONCERNED AT ALL
	3	8	DON'T KNOW
	3	9	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

# ta1 Greater Present Need Non-profits

This next section is about charitable giving and volunteering.

I would like to read you some statements about charitable organizations and have you tell me to what extent you agree or disagree with each.

The need for charitable organizations is greater now than five years ago.

Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
47.1	447	1	STRONGLY AGREE
40.0	380	2	SOMEWHAT AGREE
10.7	102	3	SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
2.1	20	4	STRONGLY DISAGREE
	8	8	DO NOT KNOW
	2	9	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

#### ta2 Organizations More Effective

Charitable organizations are more effective now in providing services than they were five years ago.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
N VALUE LABEL
PCT
21.2 194 1 STRONGLY AGREE
            2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
3 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
4 STRONGLY DISAGREE
48.9 448
21.7 199
8.2 75
      39
             8 DO NOT KNOW
      3
              9 REFUSED
     960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/25

# Place Low Trust in Organizations ta3

I place a low degree of trust in charitable organizations.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
PCT
       N VALUE LABEL
9.8 93 1 STRONGLY AGREE
35.2 332 2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
                 3 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
4 STRONGLY DISAGREE
8 DO NOT KNOW
29.4 277
25.6 241
        15
                 9 REFUSED
         2
       960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Max: 4 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0

Input location: 1/26

ta3a@a Reasons: Low Trust - 1st Mention

> Can you tell me why you feel this way (place a low degree of trust in charitable organizations)?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
21.0	85	1	MISHANDLING/MISMANAGEMENT OF FUNDS
9.8	40	2	HIGH ADMINISTRATION COSTS/HIGH SALARIES
21.5	87	3	NEGATIVE PERCEPTIONS (KATRINA, FEMA, ETC)
0.2	1	4	DO NOT AGREE GOALS/IDEALS OF ORGANIZATIONS
12.1	49	5	INFECTIVE IN HELPING THOSE IN NEED
2.8	11	6	TOO MANY ORGANIZATIONS/SKEPTICAL OF LARGE NUMBER OF ORGS
4.6	19	7	LACK OF ACCOUNTABILITY
20.2	82	8	GENERAL LACK OF TRUST
0.0	0	9	ORGS GET TOO BIG/FORGET MISSION/GOALS
7.7	31	97	MISCELLANEOUS
	16	98	DO NOT KNOW
	4	99	REFUSED
	535	•	Not Applicable
	960 ca	ases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

ta3a@b Reasons: Low Trust - 2nd Mention

Can you tell me why you feel this way (place a low degree of trust in charitable organizations)?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
0.7	3	1	MISHANDLING/MISMANAGEMENT OF FUNDS
1.6	6	2	HIGH ADMINISTRATION COSTS/HIGH SALARIES
9.0	34	3	NEGATIVE PERCEPTIONS (KATRINA, FEMA, ETC)
0.3	1	4	DO NOT AGREE GOALS/IDEALS OF ORGANIZATIONS
1.6	6	5	INFECTIVE IN HELPING THOSE IN NEED
2.2	8	6	TOO MANY ORGANIZATIONS/SKEPTICAL OF LARGE NUMBER OF ORGS
0.2	1	7	LACK OF ACCOUNTABILITY
0.8	3	8	GENERAL LACK OF TRUST
0.1	0	9	ORGS GET TOO BIG/FORGET MISSION/GOALS
82.9	316	90	NO OTHERS MENTIONED
0.7	3	97	MISCELLANEOUS
	1	98	DO NOT KNOW
	22	99	REFUSED
	555		Not Applicable
	960 ca	.ses	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

#### ta4 Honest and Ethical

Most charitable organizations are honest and ethical in their use of donated funds.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
23.7	223	1	STRONGLY AGREE
56.3	530	2	SOMEWHAT AGREE
13.9	131	3	SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
6.1	58	4	STRONGLY DISAGREE
	16	8	DO NOT KNOW
	2	9	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

ta4a@a Reasons: Honest/Ethical - 1st Mention

Can you tell me why you feel this way (that most charitable or organizations are not honest and ethical in their use of donated funds organizations?)

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
24.8	45	1	MISHANDLING/MISMANAGEMENT OF FUNDS
20.6	38	2	HIGH ADMINISTRATION COSTS/HIGH SALARIES
18.6	34	3	NEGATIVE PERCEPTIONS (KATRINA, FEMA, ETC)
0.2	0	4	DO NOT AGREE GOALS/IDEALS OF ORGANIZATIONS
6.3	11	5	INFECTIVE IN HELPING THOSE IN NEED
1.4	3	6	TOO MANY ORGANIZATIONS/SKEPTICAL OF LARGE NUMBER OF ORGS
3.0	6	7	LACK OF ACCOUNTABILITY
12.6	23	8	GENERAL LACK OF TRUST
0.1	0	9	ORGS GET TOO BIG/FORGET MISSION/GOALS
12.5	23	97	MISCELLANEOUS
	3	98	DO NOT KNOW
	2	99	REFUSED
	771	•	Not Applicable
	960 ca	ases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

ta4a@b Reasons: Honest/Ethical - 2nd Mention

Can you tell me why you feel this way (that most charitable or organizations are not honest and ethical in their use of donated funds organizations?)

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
1.8	3	1	MISHANDLING/MISMANAGEMENT OF FUNDS
0.5	1	2	HIGH ADMINISTRATION COSTS/HIGH SALARIES
3.3	6	3	NEGATIVE PERCEPTIONS (KATRINA, FEMA, ETC)
0.2	0	4	DO NOT AGREE GOALS/IDEALS OF ORGANIZATIONS
1.1	2	5	INFECTIVE IN HELPING THOSE IN NEED
0.8	1	6	TOO MANY ORGANIZATIONS/SKEPTICAL OF LARGE NUMBER OF ORGS
0.2	0	7	LACK OF ACCOUNTABILITY
3.2	5	8	GENERAL LACK OF TRUST
0.0	0	9	ORGS GET TOO BIG/FORGET MISSION/GOALS
87.2	147	90	
1.7	3	97	MISCELLANEOUS
	1	98	DO NOT KNOW
	13	99	REFUSED
	777	•	Not Applicable
	960 case	es	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

#### ta5 Contribute Betterment Communities

Generally, charitable organizations play a major role in making our communities better places to live.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
N VALUE LABEL
PCT
38.5 364 1 STRONGLY AGREE
50.0 473 2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
               2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
3 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
4 STRONGLY DISAGREE
8 DO NOT KNOW
 8.0 76
 3.5 33
        12
        2
                  9 REFUSED
        960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/36

### Poor Job Helping Others ta6

On the whole, charitable organizations do not do a very good job in helping those in need.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
N VALUE LABEL
 PCT
3.5 33 1 STRONGLY AGREE
24.0 225 2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
                   2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
3 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
4 STRONGLY DISAGREE
36.1 339
36.4 341
                    8 DO NOT KNOW
9 REFUSED
         14
          8
        960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/37

ta6a@a Reasons: Poor Job 1st Mention

Can you tell me why you feel this way (charitable organizations do not do a very good job in helping those who in need)?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
17.5	42	1	MISHANDLING/MISMANAGEMENT OF FUNDS
7.7	18	2	HIGH ADMINISTRATION COSTS/HIGH SALARIES
8.8	21	3	NEGATIVE PERCEPTIONS (KATRINA, FEMA, ETC)
0.5	1	4	DO NOT AGREE GOALS/IDEALS OF ORGANIZATIONS
44.9	107	5	INFECTIVE IN HELPING THOSE IN NEED
0.7	2	6	TOO MANY ORGANIZATIONS/SKEPTICAL OF LARGE NUMBER OF ORGS
1.0	2	7	LACK OF ACCOUNTABILITY
9.0	21	8	GENERAL LACK OF TRUST
0.0	0	9	ORGS GET TOO BIG/FORGET MISSION/GOALS
9.9	24	97	MISCELLANEOUS
	17	98	DO NOT KNOW
	3	99	REFUSED
	702	•	Not Applicable
	960 cas	ses	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

ta6a@b Reasons: Poor Job 2nd Mention

Can you tell me why you feel this way (charitable organizations do not do a very good job in helping those who in need)?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
0.4	1	1	MISHANDLING/MISMANAGEMENT OF FUNDS
0.6	1	2	HIGH ADMINISTRATION COSTS/HIGH SALARIES
0.0	0	3	NEGATIVE PERCEPTIONS (KATRINA, FEMA, ETC)
0.0	0	4	DO NOT AGREE GOALS/IDEALS OF ORGANIZATIONS
3.1	7	5	INFECTIVE IN HELPING THOSE IN NEED
0.4	1	6	TOO MANY ORGANIZATIONS/SKEPTICAL OF LARGE NUMBER OF ORGS
0.0	0	7	LACK OF ACCOUNTABILITY
0.6	1	8	GENERAL LACK OF TRUST
0.0	0	9	ORGS GET TOO BIG/FORGET MISSION/GOALS
92.6	201	90	NO MORE MENTIONS
2.3	5	97	MISCELLANEOUS
	1	98	DO NOT KNOW
	20	99	REFUSED
	722		Not Applicable
	960 c	ases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

# v1 Donate 2005

Now, thinking about your own charitable giving . . .

Did you or members of your family or household contribute money, property, or both to a charity or nonprofit organization last year, that is in 2005?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
86.0 818 1 YES
14.0 133 5 NO
6 8 DO NOT KNOW
3 9 REFUSED
---
960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/42

\_\_\_\_\_

N2 Donate: Religious Organizations

I am going to name some charitable organizations. Please tell me if you or a member of your family contributed to that type of organization.

A church, synagogue, or other religious organization?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
75.2 611 1 YES
24.8 201 5 NO
4 8 DO NOT KNOW
2 9 REFUSED
142 . Not Applicable
---
960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# ΝЗ Donate: Social Service Organizations

Social services agencies or a human service organization?

PCT	N	VALUE	Ε	LABEL
63.3	514	1	1	YES
36.7	298		5	NO
	4	8	8	DO NOT KNOW
	3	<u>G</u>	9	REFUSED
	142			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/44

# Ν4 Donate: The United Way

The United Way?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
39.5	321		1	YES
60.5	490		5	NO
	4		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	142			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# Ν5 Donate: Youth or Children's Organizations

Youth or children's organizations?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
54.8	445		1	YES
45.2	366		5	NO
	5		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	142		•	Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/46

# Ν6 Donate: Education organizations

# Education organizations?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
47.5	384		1	YES
52.5	424		5	NO
	7		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	142			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# Ν8 Donate: Community Foundations

Community foundations?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
27.9	225	1	YES
72.1	582	5	NO
	8	8	DO NOT KNOW
	3	9	REFUSED
	142		Not Applicable
	960 cas	es	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/48

#### N8a Donate: Animal Welfare

Animal welfare or animal rights groups?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
29.3	238		1	YES
70.7	575		5	NO
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	142			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# N8b Donate: Health Organization

A health organization?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
42.3	342		1	YES
57.7	467		5	NO
	7		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	142		•	Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# N9 Total Contributions

Approximately how much do you or your family members contribute to charitable organizations each year? Please include all cash donations and donations of goods and services.

PCT 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.6 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.5 0.0 1.0 4.5 1.9 5.8 1.3 3.0 8.8 0.0 1.7 0.6 0.4 0.2 7.7 0.2 1.0 0.2 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.2	N 0 0 2 5 3 0 0 0 3 12 0 1 3 26 1 0 8 37 15 47 10 24 72 0 14 5 4 2 63 1 8 2 0 29 0 2	VALUE  1 2 15 20 24 25 35 36 40 50 52 60 65 100 120 134 150 200 250 300 350 400 550 600 650 700 750 800 900 1100 1200 1250 1400 1250 1400 1500 1560 1600	LABEL	CONTRIBUTIONS
3.6 0.0	29 0	1500 1560		

```
0.0
       0
                 2150
 1.4 11
                 2500
 0.2
       1
                 2700
 4.4 36
                3000
                3500
3600
 2.7 22
0.1 1
               3600
3800
4000
4500
5000
5500
0.0
1.0 8
0.5
       4
 4.6 38
0.4
       3
               6000
6500
7000
7500
1.2 10
0.0
0.6 5
0.2 2
               8000
8500
9000
9999
0.8 7
       1
0.1
       2
0.2
1.6 13
              10000
1.7 14
0.0
0.0 0
0.3 2
0.2 2
0.0 0
0.5 4
0.0 0
               12000
               13000
              15000
17000
20000
       1
0.2
0.2 1
0.2 2
0.1 1
0.0 0
0.0 0
               20500
                30000
               35000
               90000 TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS
0.0 0 99997 MORE THAN $90,000
10.7 88 99998 DON'T KNOW
7.4 60 99999 REFUSED
10.7 88
                . Not Applicable
      142
      ___
      960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 2 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 99999

#### v4 Future Contributions

Do you think that your household has or will contribute more, less, or about the same this year as you did last year?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
14.8	121		1	MORE
17.2	141		3	LESS
68.0	555		5	ABOUT THE SAME
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	142			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/57

# Volunteer 2005 v5

Next, I have some questions about volunteer activities.

Last year, that is, in 2005, did you volunteer for any type of organization?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL 48.9 469 1 YES 51.1 491 5 NO
                   8 DO NOT KNOW
9 REFUSED
         0
         0
        960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# V3 Previous Volunteer

Have you ever been involved in any volunteer activities?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
63.2	309		1	YES
36.8	180		5	NO
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	469			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/59

# pastvol Reasons: No Longer Volunteering

What is the main reason why you are no longer volunteering?

0.8 0.0 17.5	N 185 3 0 54 18 4	3	1 2	LABEL TOO BUSY/NO TIME KIDS NO LONGER INVOLVED LAZY/UNMOTIVATED HEALTH REASONS/ILLNESS/DISABILITY AGE/TOO OLD NO LONGER INTERESTED ORGANIZATION DEFUNCT
0.5	18 27	97		CHOOSE NOT TO/PERSONAL CHOICE OTHER: MISCELLANEOUS
	0 1 651	98 99 •	-	DO NOT KNOW REFUSED Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

voltime Amount Time Volunteer

Approximately how many hours do you volunteer in an average month?

PCT 2.7 9.3 11.2 4.8 9.8 10.1 5.7 0.9 4.3 12.8 2.6 0.9 3.6 0.9 0.0 5.8 1.0 0.1 2.3 0.1 2.3 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.0	N 12 42 50 21 44 45 25 4 19 57 12 4 16 4 0 26 5 3 7 9 1 1 1 0 0 19 1 1 1 1 0 0 19 1 1 1 1 1		VALUE 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 10 12 14 15 16 18 20 24 25 26 30 32 35 40 45 50 55 60 72 75 80 96 100 150 180 200 260 500 998 999	HOURS DON'T KNOW REFUSED Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 999,998

Decimals: 0 Max: 260

Input location: 1/62-64

V4a Volunteer: Health Orgs

> Next, I would like to list some different areas in which people do volunteer activities. Please tell me in which, if any, of the following areas you volunteered last year (that is, in 2005).

A health organization?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 27.8 130 1 YES 5 NO 72.2 338 8 DO NOT KNOW 0 9 REFUSED Ω 491 . Not Applicable \_\_\_ 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/65

V5a Volunteer: Educational Organization

An educational organization?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 1 YES 5 NO 52.6 246 47.4 222 8 DO NOT KNOW 9 REFUSED 0 0 . Not Applicable 491 \_\_\_ 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/66

# V6a Volunteer: Religious Organization

A religious organization?

```
PCT
         VALUE LABEL
59.2 278
            1 YES
40.8 191
              5 NO
              8 DO NOT KNOW
              9 REFUSED
     0
    491
             . Not Applicable
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/67

# V7a Volunteer: Human Service Organization

A human service organization?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
35.4	166		1	YES
64.6	302		5	NO
	1		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	491			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/68

# V8a Volunteer: Environmental Organization

An environmental organization?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
12.8	60		1	YES
87.2	408		5	NO
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	491			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/69

# V10a Volunteer: Arts Cultural Organizations

Arts or cultural organizations?

L	LABE	VALUE		N	PCT
	YES	1		93	19.9
	NO	5		375	80.1
OT KNOW	DO N	8		0	
SED	REFU	9		0	
Applicable	Not			491	
			cases	960	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

#### V12a Volunteer: Political Organization

A political organization or campaign?

```
VALUE LABEL
PCT
14.3
   67
            1 YES
              5 NO
85.7 402
    0
              8 DO NOT KNOW
              9 REFUSED
     0
    491
             . Not Applicable
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/71

#### V13a Volunteer: Youth Development Organization

A youth development organization?

ble

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

#### v8 Future Volunteerism

Do you think that you have or will volunteer more, less, or about the same this year as you did last year?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
22.2	103		1	MORE
16.7	77		3	LESS
61.2	284		5	ABOUT THE SAME
	4		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	491			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/73

# volless

# Reason Volunteering Less

Why are you volunteering less or planning to volunteer less this year than last?

PCT 60.8	N 47	V	ALUE 1	LABEL TOO BUSY/NO TIME
1.4	1		2	KIDS NO LONGER INVOLVED
0.0	0		3	LAZY/UNMOTIVATED
9.2	7		4	HEALTH REASONS/ILLNESS/DISABILITY
3.7	3		5	AGE/TOO OLD
4.0	3		6	NO LONGER INTERESTED
0.0	0		7	ORGANIZATION DEFUNCT
12.8	10		8	CHOOSE NOT TO/PERSONAL CHOICE
8.0	6		97	OTHER: MISCELLANEOUS
	0		98	DO NOT KNOW
	0		99	REFUSED
	882		•	Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

Input location: 1/74-75

ow1 Overweight Issue

Next I have a question about a health issue.

Some people believe that being overweight is a public health concern that should be addressed by society as a whole. Others believe that being overweight is a personal concern and is only the business of the individuals involved. Which of these views comes closest to your own opinion?

```
N VALUE LABEL
PCT
43.4 407 1 OVERWEIGHT PUBLIC HEALTH CONCERN 56.6 531 5 OVERWEIGHT PERSONAL CONCERN 8 DO NOT KNOW
        3
                  9 REFUSED
        960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/76

CD1 Sex

Finally, I have a few background questions.

```
N VALUE LABEL
48.6 467 1 MALE
51.4 493 5 FEMALE
      ___
      960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 5

# CD2 Year Born

In what year were you born?

PCT 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.5 0.8 0.7 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.4 1.2 0.9 1.4 1.0 0.9	N 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 5 3 1 5 3 8 7 5 8 7 9 9 6 4 7 4 13 13 11 9 11 9 13 10 9	VALUE  0 9 13 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	LABEI	BIRTH
1.2 1.0 1.4	11 9 13	40 41 42		

```
1.6 16
         56
4.1
    39
         57
1.6 15
        58
2.3 22
        59
2.6 24
        60
3.6 34
        61
1.5 14
        62
1.1 11
        63
1.1
    11
        64
1.5
   15
        65
1.7
   16
        66
1.9
   18
        67
2.5
   24
        68
1.4
   14
        69
3.3
   32
         70
1.5
   14
         71
2.4
   23
         72
1.9
   18
         73
0.1
    1
         74
2.4
   22
         75
2.7
   26
         76
1.1
         77
    11
3.4
    32
         78
1.6
   15
         79
1.3
   12
        80
1.3
   12
         81
1.4 13
         82
         83
0.6
    6
2.7
   26
         84
1.4 14
         85
2.5
         86
   24
         87
3.3
   31
        88 YEAR OF BIRTH
98 DO NOT KNOW
    4
0.4
    1
         99 REFUSED
    10
    ___
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 9 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 88

Input location: 1/78-79

#### CD3 Education

What is the highest level of education you have completed?

```
N VALUE LABEL
 1.6
          15
                        O DID NOT GO TO SCHOOL
                          1 GRADE
2 GRADE
58.9 565
 2.3 22
 0.5 5
                           8 GRADE
0.3 3 9 GRADE
0.1 1 10 GRADE
0.2 2 11 GRADE
12.1 116 12 HIGH SCHOOL GRAD OR GED
3.9 37 13 COLLEGE 1<sup>ST</sup> YEAR
4.1 39 14 COLLEGE 2<sup>ND</sup> YEAR
1.9 18 15 COLLEGE 3<sup>RD</sup> YEAR
7.1 68 16 COLLEGE GRADUATE
0.9 8 17 SOME POST GRADUATE
4.7 45 18 GRADUATE DEGREE
1.4 14 20 TECHNICAL/JUNIOR COLLEGE GRAD
0 98 DO NOT KNOW
 0.3 3
                           9 GRADE
12.1 116
                         98 DO NOT KNOW
             0
                         99 REFUSED
              1
            960 cases
```

Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 20

Input location: 1/80-81

#### CD5a Ethnicity

Are you of Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin?

```
PCT
        N VALUE LABEL
              1 YES, HISPANIC
5 NO, NOT HISPANIC
8 DO NOT KNOW
9 REFUSED
      13
1.3
98.7 941
         2
         5
       960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Max: 5 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0

Input location: 2/2

CD4a@a Race: White/Caucasian

What is your race?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 80.9 774 1 YES 19.1 183 5 NO 2 9 REFUSED \_\_\_

960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/3

#### CD4a@b Race: African American or Black

African American or Black?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 14.5 138 1 YES 85.5 819 5 NO 2 9 REFUSED 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CD4a@c Race: Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander

Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 0.4 4 1 YES 99.6 954 5 NO 2 9 REFUSED ---960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/5

CD4a@d Race: Asian

Asian

PCT N VALUE LABEL
1.4 13 1 YES
98.6 944 5 NO
2 9 REFUSED 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CD4a@e Race: American Indian or Alaska Native

American Indian or Alaska Native

PCT N VALUE LABEL 1.2 12 1 YES 98.8 946 5 NO 2 9 REFUSED ---960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/7

CD4a@f Race: Other

Other: specify

PCT N VALUE LABEL 3.5 34 1 YES 96.5 924 5 NO 2 9 REFUSED 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

#### CD6 Religion

What is the religious group which you feel most closely represents your religious views?

(Is it Catholic, Islamic, Jewish, Protestant, some other religion, or no religion)?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
13.0	122	0	NONE
30.8	290	1	CATHOLIC
0.6	5	2	ISLAMIC/MUSLIM
0.5	5	3	JEWISH
47.3	445	4	PROTESTANT
2.6	25	5	OTHER NON CHRISTIAN
3.9	37	7	OTHER CHRISTIAN
1.2	11	8	UNABLE TO CLASSIFY
	4	98	DO NOT KNOW
	16	99	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 8

Input location: 2/9-10

### CD7@a

# Political Affiliation

Generally speaking, do you think of yourself as a Republican, a Democrat, an Independent or something else?

```
PCT
          N VALUE LABEL
10.3 96 0 SOMETHING ELSE
26.5 246 1 REPUBLICAN
28.2 262 4 INDEPENDENT
34.9 324 7 DEMOCRAT
                     8 DO NOT KNOW
          20
                     9 REFUSED
          12
         960 cases
```

Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8 Max: 7 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0

Input location: 2/11

#### CD7@b Republican

Would you call yourself a strong Republican or not a very strong Republican?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
51.6 126 1 STRONGLY REPUBLICAN
48.4 118 2 NOT VERY STRONG REPUBLICAN
2 8 DO NOT KNOW
0 9 REFUSED
                            9 REFUSED
. Not Applicable
          713
          960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 2

Input location: 2/12

#### CD7@c Democrat

Would you call yourself a strong Democrat or not a very strong Democrat?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
39.5	127		6	NOT VERY STRONG DEMOCRAT
60.5	194		7	STRONG DEMOCRAT
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	636			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 6 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 2/13

#### CD7@d Independent

Do you generally think of yourself as closer to the  $\operatorname{Democratic}$   $\operatorname{Party}$ or the Republican Party?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
22.2	55		3	REPUBLICAN
37.0	92		4	NEITHER
40.9	102		5	DEMOCRAT
	6		8	DO NOT KNOW
	7		9	REFUSED
	698		•	Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 3 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/14

partyid		Political	Identification
PCT 10.5 13.8 13.0 6.1 10.1 11.2 13.9 21.3	126 118 55 92 102 127	Political VALUE 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Identification  LABEL OTHER STRONG REPUBLICAN NOT STRONG REPUBLICAN LEAN REPUBLICAN NEITHER LEAN DEMOCRAT NOT STRONG DEMOCRAT STRONG DEMOCRAT DO NOT KNOW REFUSED
	18		Not Applicable
	960 ca	ases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

#### P17@a Ideology

Generally speaking, do you think of yourself as a conservative, a moderate, or a liberal?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
2.1	20	0	OTHER
38.4	349	1	CONSERVATIVE
43.2	393	4	NEITHER
16.2	147	7	LIBERAL
	32	8	DO NOT KNOW
	19	9	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 2/16

#### P17@b Conservative

Would you consider yourself very conservative or somewhat conservative?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
34.1	118		1	VERY CONSERVATIVE
65.9	228		2	SOMEWHAT CONSERVATIVE
	3		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	610			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 2

Input location: 2/17

#### P17@c Liberal

Would you consider yourself very liberal or somewhat liberal?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
73.0	103		6	SOMEWHAT LIBERAL
27.0	38		7	VERY LIBERAL
	5		8	DO NOT KNOW
	2		9	REFUSED
	812		•	Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 6 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 2/18

#### P17@d Middle

Do you generally think of yourself as closer to the conservative side or the liberal side?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
42.9	167		3	CLOSER CONSERVATIVE
16.3	63		4	IN THE MIDDLE
40.8	159		5	CLOSER LIBERAL
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	4		9	REFUSED
	567			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 3 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ideology		Political	Ideology
0.0 13.5 26.0 19.0 7.2 18.1 11.7	118 228 167 63	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	OTHER VERY CONSERVATIVE SOMEWHAT CONSERVATIVE LEAN CONSERVATIVE MIDDLE LEAN LIBERAL SOMEWHAT LIBERAL VERY LIBERAL DO NOT KNOW
	numeric	Min: Max:	

Input location: 2/20

#### CD8 Marital Status

What is your marital status?

(Are you currently married, divorced, separated, widowed, member of an unmarried couple, or have you never been married?)

```
N VALUE LABEL
PCT
      569 1 MARRIED
82 2 DT:::
59.4 569
                 2 DIVORCED
8.6
                 3 SEPARATED
0.7
        7
               4 WIDOWED
5 MEMBER UNMARRIED COUPLE
6 SINGLE NEVER BEEN MARRIED
8 DO NOT KNOW
9 REFUSED
6.9
      66
      28
2.9
21.5 206
        0
         2
       960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 6

Input location: 2/21

#### CD10 Adults

Including yourself, how many individuals who are 18 years of age or older live in your household?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
18.4	177	1	ADULTS
53.0	509	2	
17.7	170	3	
10.5	101	4	
0.3	3	5	
0.0	0	7	
	0	98	DO NOT KNOW
	0	99	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

## CD15 Employment Status

We are interested in learning about the different ways people may earn their living. Last week, were you working full-time, part-time, going to school, a homemaker or something else?

```
PCT
        N VALUE LABEL
46.9 447 1 WORK FULL TIME
 12.4 118 2 WORK PART TIME
1.6 16 3 WORK AND GO TO SCHOOL
12.4 118
 0.0
                4 IN THE ARMED FORCES]
1.2 12 5 JOB, DID NOT WORK LAST WEEK
5.0 48 6 UNEMPLOYED
17.0 162 7 RETIRED
1.6 15 8 SCHOOL FULL-TIME
11.6 111 9 HOMEMAKER
               10 DISABLED
 2.5
       24
               97 MISCELLANEOUS
 0.0
        0
         Ω
               98 DO NOT KNOW
                99 REFUSED
         8
       960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 10

Input location: 2/24-25

UN1 Union Member

Are you currently a member of a union or are you represented by a union?

```
PCT
              VALUE LABEL
      N
               1 YES
16.6
    98
                 5 NO
83.4
    489
                 8 DO NOT KNOW
      6
                 9 REFUSED
       0
                 . Not Applicable
     367
     960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/26

#### UN2 Past Union

Have you ever been a member of a union or represented by a union?

```
VALUE LABEL
37.8 326
            1 YES
62.2 535
              5 NO
              8 DO NOT KNOW
              9 REFUSED
     1
    98
              . Not Applicable
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/27

#### UN3 Union Family

Is anyone else in your household a member of a union or represented by a union?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
25.5	197		1	YES
74.5	576		5	NO
	9		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	177			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/28

inca

\$35,000 or More

To get a picture of people's financial situations, we'd like to know the general range of incomes of all households we interview. This is for statistical analysis purposes and your answers will be kept strictly confidential. Now, thinking about your household's total annual income from all sources (including your job), did your household receive \$30,000 or more in 2005?

```
PCT
    N VALUE LABEL
75.6 656
         1 YES
24.4 211
           5 NO
     22
           8 DO NOT KNOW
           9 REFUSED
     70
    ---
    960 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/29

incb

Less Than \$20,000

Was it less than \$20,000?

CT	N	VALUE	LABEL
. 2	89	1	YES
. 8	113	5	NO
	8	8	DO NOT KNOW
	1	9	REFUSED
•	748		Not Applicable
-			
(	960 cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

#### incc Less than \$10,000

Was it less an \$10,000?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
15.3	13		1	YES
84.7	73		5	NOT
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	870			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/31

#### incd \$60,000 or More

Was it \$60,000? or more?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
58.1	376		1	YES
41.9	272		5	NO
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	7		9	REFUSED
	303			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

#### ince \$40,000 or More

Was it \$40,000 or more?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
68.4	179		1	YES
31.6	83		5	NO
	10		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	688			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/33

#### incf \$50,000 or More

Was it \$50,000 or more?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
45.6	79		1	YES
54.4	94		5	NO
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	6		9	REFUSED
	781			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/34

#### incg \$70,000 or More

Was it more than \$70,000?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
73.7	272		1	YES
26.3	97		5	NO
	6		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	584		•	Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/35

10,000 999 999 999 999 999 999 more REFUSED
99 99 99 99 99 mo

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 8

#### CD26 Phone Lines

How many different phone numbers does your household have, not including cell phones?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
86.2 826 1 PHONE NUMBERS
12.0 115 2 PHONE NUMBERS
1.2 12 3 PHONE NUMBERS
0.5 5 4 PHONE NUMBERS
0.0 0 5 PHONE NUMBERS
0 8 DO NOT KNOW
12.0 115
          2
                   9 REFUSED
        960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/37

#### Х1 Community

Would you say you live in a rural community, a small city or town, a suburb, or an urban community?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
1.6	15	0	OTHER: SPECIFY
24.3	233	1	RURAL COMMUNITY
34.6	331	2	SMALL CITY, TOWN, VILLAGE
23.1	221	3	A SUBURB
16.5	157	4	URBAN COMMUNITY
	1	98	DO NOT KNOW
	2	99	REFUSED
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

zipcode Zip Code

What is your zip code?

960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 8 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 49959

Input location: 2/40-44

#### RI@a Re-Interview

In a couple of months, we'd like to re-contact some of the people we've spoken with for another interview. Would you be willing to participate again in a couple of months?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
86.0	513		1	YES
14.0	84		5	NO
	6		8	DO NOT KNOW
	2		9	REFUSED
	355			Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

contacts		Contact	s	
7.8 4.6 3.4	184 97 92 75 44 33 50 20 30 19 9 2	1 1 1 1	E 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 3 ·	LABEL  Not Applicable
	960	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 13

Input location: 3/1-2

length		Int	erview	Leng	gth	
	N 3 31 83 147 127 150 158 69 42 50 22 17 18 3 15 3 3 1 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 5 960	cases	VALUE 0 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 .		EL SING Applicabl	e

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 33

Input location: 3/3-6

idate			Interv	iew Date
	PCT 2.8 2.0 2.3 1.2 8.4 6.8 7.5 1.0 2.6 1.4 2.8 2.8 4.9 2.8 1.5 6.8 4.9 2.8 1.3 3.6 6.4 9.3 1.3 3.6 6.4 9.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1	N 260 9 3 12 8 1 6 5 7 3 4 9 1 6 6 7 3 4 9 1 6 8 1 1 7 5 4 3 8 1 2 2 5 9 3 4 4 6 3 4 0 1 1	VALUE 6212006 6222006 6232006 6242006 6252006 6262006 6272006 6282006 6292006 7012006 7032006 7052006 7052006 7052006 7052006 7052006 7052006 7102006	LABEL

0.4 4 8062006 1.4 14 8072006 0.9 9 8082006 0.4 3 8092006 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 6212006 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 8092006

Input location: 3/7-14

iwer		Inte	erview	wer			
	PCT 0.1 8.2 7.6 0.8 0.4 1.0 5.6 1.4 7.0 0.8 5.6 0.6 16.1 1.0 2.2 0.9 7.0 1.4 2.4 2.5 0.1 7.5 0.4 2.5 1.1 0.7 7.5 0.4 1.7 7.5 1.7 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7	VALUE 5 18 76 100 125 175 178 181 184 187 191 193 194 198 201 207 215 216 224 252 297 305 355 357 369 404 411 412 417 425 427 439 cases	LABI		MD	Codes:	none
	Decima	0	Max:				

Input location: 3/15-17

# males Males PCT N VALUE 12.3 118 0 68.9 661 1 15.0 144 2 3.8 36 3 --960 cases

Type: character Width: 2

Input location: 3/18-19

females		Female
PCT 10.8 74.1 13.0 2.2	103 711 125 21	VALUE 0 1 2 3
	960	cases

Type: character Width: 2

Input location: 3/20-21

#### races Respondent Race

Re-coded race of respondent (multiple responses coded to a single group)

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
83.3 774
            1 White
14.9 138
              2 African American
0.1 1
              3 Hawaiian Pacific Islander
1.0 9
              4 Asian
     7
0.7
              5 Native American
    30
             . Not Applicable
    ___
    960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 3/57

#### agecat Rs age in categories

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
          12.3 117
 8.7
8.7 82 2 25 - 29 Yrs

20.2 191 3 30 - 39 Yrs

21.1 200 4 40 - 49 Yrs

15.4 146 5 50 - 59 Yrs

5.2 50 6 60 - 64 Yrs

17.1 162 7 65 or older

11 9 REFUSED
           ___
           960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

```
msueregn
                      Region code based on MSU Extension Groupings
        PCT N VALUE LABEL
               2 0 MISSING
      3.4 32 1 UP

5.7 54 2 NORTH LP

14.2 136 3 W. CENTRAL

8.7 83 4 E. CENTRAL

13.8 132 5 SOUTHWEST

54.3 520 6 SOUTHEAST URBAN
             960 cases
     Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0
     Decimals: 0 Max: 6
     Input location: 3/65
                     Race 3 categories
rac3
      3.2 30 0 Refuse-Not codable 80.7 774 1 White
        PCT N VALUE LABEL
                      2 African American
3 Other
      14.4 138
       1.7 17
              ___
             960 cases
     Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,7 Decimals: 0 Max: 3
```

AGE Age of Respondent

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
0 4	11	0	REFUSED/MISSING
0.4	4 31	18	
3.3 2.5	24	19 20	
1.4	14	21	
2.7	26	22	
0.6	6	23	
1.4	13	24	
1.3	12	25	
1.3	12	26	
1.6	15	27	
3.4	32	28	
1.1	11	29	
2.7 2.4	26 22	30 31	
0.1	1	32	
1.9	18	33	
2.4	23	34	
1.5	14	35	
3.3	32	36	
1.4	14	37	
2.5	24	38	
1.9	18	39	
1.7 1.5	16 15	40 41	
1.1	11	42	
1.1	11	43	
1.5	14	44	
3.6	34	45	
2.6	24	46	
2.3	22	47	
1.6	15	48	
4.1	39	49	
1.6 1.5	16 15	50 51	
1.5	14	52	
2.4	23	53	
1.3	12	54	
1.4	13	55	
1.9	18	56	
0.8	7	57	
1.6 1.4	15	58 50	
0.9	13 9	59 60	
1.0	9	61	
	,	<b>U 1</b>	

0.9 1.0 1.4 1.0 1.2 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.4 0.5 0.7 0.5 0.7 1.0 0.7 0.8 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.5 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	9 10 13 9 11 13 13 4 7 4 6 9 9 7 8 5 7 8 3 5 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 88 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 93 97
	960	cases

Type: numeric Min: 18 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

Input location: 3/82-83

```
imprace
                Respondent Race with Imputation for missing data
```

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
0 0 Refuse-Not codable
83.3 800 1 White
14.9 143 2 African American
1.7 17 3 Other
         960 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 3

Input location: 3/84

#### Alternative Coding of Income newinc

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
	70	0	REFUSED
1.5	13	1	\$10,000 or less
8.8	76	2	\$10,000-19,999
14.1	122	3	\$20,000-29,999
11.7	102	4	\$30,000-39,999
11.5	100	5	\$40,000-49,999
9.1	79	6	\$50,000-59,999
12.0	104	7	\$60,000-69,999
31.3	272	8	\$70,000 or more
	22	9	DO NOT KNOW
	960	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0,9 Decimals: 0 Max: 8

```
sample
                       Sample source of Respondent
        PCT N VALUE LABEL
       37.0 355 1 S-41 Re-Interview
                         2 S-42 New Respondent
       63.0 605
               960 cases
      Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0
      Decimals: 0 Max: 2
      Input location: 3/86
msue2005
                      New MSUE Region code (2005)
        PCT N VALUE LABEL
       3.4 32 1 UP
5.8 56 2 NORTH LP
13.9 133 3 CENTRAL
20.9 200 4 SOUTHWEST
47.4 455 5 SOUTHEAST - City of Detroit
8.7 83 6 DETROIT
               960 cases
      Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 6
      Input location: 3/87
               Rs age in 4 categories
agecat4
       PCT N VALUE LABEL
21.0 199 1 18 - 29 Yrs
27.2 258 2 30 - 44 Yrs
34.8 330 3 45 - 64 Yrs
17.1 162 4 65 or older
11 9 REFUSED/missing
               960 cases
      Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9 Decimals: 0 Max: 4
      Input location: 3/88
```

msue2005r5 New MSUE Region code (5 categories)

> PCT N VALUE LABEL 3.4 32 1 UP 5.8 56 2 NORTH 13.9 133 3 CENTRAL 20.9 200 4 SOUTHWEST 56.1 538 5 SOUTHEAST 960 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 5